Minutes NWFSC Foundation, Inc. Board of Directors Meeting August 3, 2016 7:45 a.m. Morell Room #302, Student Services Center, 3rd Floor, Niceville Campus

Directors Present:

Bo Arnold	Venita Morell
Bethany Burke	Dennis Peters
Wayne Campbell	Dale Peterson
Bart Fleet	Melissa Pilcher
Jeff Floyd	Tom Rice
Paige Floyd-Hart	Donnie Richardson
Chad Hamilton	Fred Thomas
Don Litke	Steve Wills
Lois Lunderman	Steve Wolfrom
Jeff McInnis	
Staff Present:	
Serena Brown	Carla Reinlie

Serena Brown Cristie Kedroski Jason Masters

Others Present:

Drew Hannah	Jeanette Shires
Sasha Jarrell	Kristen Williams
Latavia Jordan	Mauldin & Jenkins Firm:
Ray McGovern	Brian Carter
Shane O'Dell	Ali Geiger
Jeff Rink	Jennifer Ruffino-Cook

Absent: David Costa, Scott Jackson, Mitch Mongell, Dewayne Youngblood

Call to Order

Mr. Peterson called the meeting to order at 7:47 a.m.

Welcome Board Members and Guests

Mr. Peterson welcomed new Board Members, guests, new staff members and auditors.

Approval of Minutes

The minutes of the June 1, 2016, Board of Directors Meeting were approved. Motion to approve minutes as presented, Mr. McGinnis; Second, Mr. Richardson; Motion carried unanimously.

Julie Sartori

Finance and Investment Reports

Mr. Hamilton reviewed the summary of Financial Position, the Statement of Activities, and the Investment Report as of June 30, 2016 with the board members. Total assets are \$45,124,717 and Total Liabilities are \$71,382, bringing the Total Fund Balance to \$45,053,335. The Statement of Activities reflected \$453,394 in Revenues and \$3,087,152 in Expenditures for a total Net Decrease in Fund balance of (\$2,633,758). The Net Decrease to the Merrill Lynch EMA account since July 1, 2015 was (\$910,091) bringing the Total Market Value to \$40,000,656 at June 30,

2016. The Net Increase to the Vanguard Wellington Account (Science Development Fund) through the 4th and final quarter was \$11,858, bringing the Total Market Value to \$256,699 as of June 30, 2016. Combined total holdings of the Merrill Lynch EMA and Vanguard Wellington accounts were \$40,257,355. The portfolios are allocated as 4.35% Cash & Cash Equivalents, 60.53% Equity, 11.17% Alternative Investments and 23.95% Fixed Income. Motion to approve Finance and Investment Reports as of June 30, 2016, Maj. Gen Litke; Second, Mr. Richardson; Motion carried unanimously.

Development Committee Report

Mr. Peterson shared the Development Plan and noted that it provides a framework and direction for all development activities. Ms. Reinlie provided a chart displaying the fundraising goal for the fiscal year. In 2016-17, the Foundation seeks to raise \$676,963 in gifts/contributions, excluding grants and bequests. She also provided a Gift Range Goal Chart and noted that the Development Committee has prioritized annual fund giving with fundraising efforts focused on two new academic programs (Hospitality and Occupational Therapy), unrestricted gifts through the President's Circle, and broadening the base of donors for gifts \$250 and below. Ms. Reinlie noted that the provided chart was tailored specifically for the Foundation and that currently we are deficient in the amount of donors giving at the lower levels. She also noted that the Development Committee had endorsed the use of a third party vendor, eTeam Sponsor to be a crowdfunding platform for Raider Athletics to raise money and presented a board engagement brochure to the board members to equip them in their conversations and advocacy for the college. **Motion to approve amended development plan, Mr. Rice; Second, Mr. McInnis; Motion carried unanimously.**

Commitment to Serve

Ms. Kedroski presented the commitment to serve form to the board and noted that annually board members are requested to sign and complete it.

2016-17 Board Committees

Mr. Peterson presented the Board Committee appointments for fiscal year 2016-17. He noted that directors that completed the preference form received their first choice and that if there are concerns about an appointment or if a member wished to serve on additional committees, that they should let the staff know.

Matching Funds Opportunities

Ms. Kedroski noted that the state of Florida has notified NWFSC that it has been allotted \$13,592 for academic year 2016-17 in FGMG funds. She noted that receipt of the FGMG funds requires a 1:1 match in private contributions with certification due to the state no later than December 1, 2016. She also noted that this program provides financial assistance to students whose parents did not complete a baccalaureate degree and that these students must be enrolled as a NWFSC undergraduate, degree-seeking student, with a minimum of six credit hours. The Foundation will promote this match opportunity to donors, but emphasizes that these are "in and out" funds that are not available for endowment purposes. Ms. Brown also noted that the Florida College System has notified NWFSC that it has been allotted \$13,477 in Florida Blue scholarship funds for academic year 2016-17 to support Nursing and Allied Health students. She said similar to the FGMG program, the Florida Blue funds are "in and out" funds that are not available for endownes are "in and out" funds that are not available students. She said similar to the FGMG program, the Florida Blue funds are "in and out" funds that are not available for endownes are "in and out" funds that are not available for support Nursing and Allied Health students. She said similar to the FGMG program, the Florida Blue funds are "in and out" funds that are not available for endownes are "in and out" funds that are not available for endownes are "in and out" funds that are not available for endownes are "in and out" funds that are not available for endownes are "in and out" funds that are not available for endownes are "in and out" funds that are not available for endownes are "in and out" funds that are not available for endownes.

Summary of \$1,000+ Contributions

Ms. Kedroski presented a chart that summarized \$1000+ contributions made between May 25, 2016 and Jul 21, 2016. Ms. Kedroski distributed note cards to Board Members to help recognize and thank the donors.

Upcoming Events and Activities

Ms. Kedroski presented a detailed list of upcoming college events and activities from August 4, 2016 to October 5, 2016. She also provided a Board Meeting Schedule for 2016-17 and gave a short presentation on how the members can get online to utilize the various resources on the Foundation Website, such as the web calendar and policies.

Other Items

Ms. Kedroski reminded the board that the Foundation Annual Banquet was coming up on August 26 and encouraged them to rsvp if they have not already.

SGA Update

Mr. Hannah first thanked the board for inviting him to attend and commended all of their hard work in helping make the scholarships that the students receive possible. He gave a brief report on various activities and events that SGA has participated in such as the recent Raider Orientation and forthcoming events such as the welcome back week club sign up event for the students.

Mattie Kelly Arts Center - Jeanette Shires, Director MKAC; K.C. Williams, Gallery Director; and Jeff Rink, NFSO Conductor

Ms. Shires thanked the board for their time and efforts. She presented a brief video about the upcoming Mattie Kelly season. Ms. Williams provided a flier with the art gallery's schedule and gave a brief presentation on the various upcoming art events. Mr. Rink noted that it is the Mattie Kelly Arts Center's 20th anniversary and the 30th anniversary of the NFSO. He provided a brochure of all of the upcoming NFSO events.

Draft Committee Meeting Minutes

Mr. Peterson noted that minutes from recent committee meetings were provided in the board packets as information items.

Trustee Liaison Remarks

Mr. Floyd noted that he was excited for the New Year and gave a brief report on the Board of Trustee's endeavors. He noted that the Trustees have 4 new members and that their next meeting will include a SWOT analysis for the college. He also noted their efforts in having a new College President in place by January 1st and that there are lobbying efforts in the works for college.

Foundation Chair Remarks

No report.

College Report by Dr. Sasha Jarrell, NWF State College, Interim President

Dr. Jarrell commended the Raider Orientation and said that it was a successful event. She also touched upon the Board of Trustees Retreat and said that they are undergoing training to become better lobbyists for the college. Dr. Jarrell also noted that enrollment is up from last year but there is still a 25% gap to close to have flat enrollment.

Student Scholar

Ms. Latavia Jordan, Burke Family scholar, introduced herself, thanked everyone for their investment into her education and shared her aspirations after graduating from Northwest Florida State College.

Around the Table

Ms. Sartori reminded the board to rsvp if they haven't already for the Annual Banquet. Mr. Campbell commended Ms. Jordan and said stories like hers are why the board members volunteer.

Mr. Rice thanked Dr. Jarrell and Ms. Kedroski for their leadership in the college and getting out to visit with community members.

Ms. Shires provided more information on how the board members could become donors for the Mattie Kelly Arts Center.

Ms. Lunderman congratulated Ms. Jordan for her success in school.

Ms. Burke thanked Ms. Jordan for attending.

Mr. Peters gave a brief update on some of activities of the CBA committee.

Ms. Floyd-Hart told Ms. Jordan that she was an inspiration.

Schedule of Next Meeting

The next Foundation Board meeting will be October 5, 2016, at 7:45 a.m. in the Morell Room 302, 3rd floor of the Student Services Center, Niceville Campus.

Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:12 a.m.

Mitch Mongell, Cha

Iolslig Date

Cristie Kedroski, Secretary